
Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda

Meeting Time: 
4:00 pm

Location:
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority Boardroom

801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch

Wednesday, March 27, 2024

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

CITY OF ANTIOCH 
Lamar Hernandez-
Thorpe, Chair 
Monica Wilson

CITY OF BRENTWOOD 
Joel Bryant
Tony Oerlemans

CITY OF OAKLEY
Shannon Shaw
Anissa Williams

CITY OF PITTSBURG
Dionne Adams
Shanelle Scales-Preston

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
Diane Burgis
Federal Glover, Vice-Chair

MEMBER-AT-LARGE
Merl Craft

Honoring all on Transit Employee Appreciation Day! 



Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday March 27, 2024 

Available Online: https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx 
 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER Chair Lamar Hernandez-Thorpe 
a. Roll Call 

 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
While public comments are encouraged and taken very seriously, State law prevents the 
Board of Directors from discussing items that are not on the meeting agenda. If appropriate, 
staff will follow up on public comments. Please see Public Comment Guidelines on the last 
page of this agenda.  

 
 
4. CHAIR’S REPORT Chair Lamar Hernandez-Thorpe 
 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR (ACTION ITEM):  

(see attachment: tab #1)  
a. Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting of February 24, 2024  
b. Financial Report 
c. Marketing and Customer Service Activities Report 

Requested Action: Approve items 5a, 5b, and 5c 
 
 
6. CEO’S REPORT Rashidi Barnes  
   (see attachment: tab #2) 
 
 
7. ACTION ITEMS and DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a. ACTION ITEM: 2024 DBE Program  
 (see attachment: tab #3) 

  Requested Action: Adopt Resolution #240327A, approving ECCTA’s 2024   
  Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program and authorizing staff to submit the  
  program to the FTA 
 

 

 

https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx


Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday March 27, 2024 

Available Online: https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx 
 
 

 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA – JANUARY 24, 2024 |      

 
 

b. ACTION ITEM:  Authorization of Filling for TDA and STA Funding  
  (see attachment: tab #4) 

   Requested Action: Adopt Resolution #240327B which authorizes the Chief  
   Executive Officer or their designee to file an application with the Metropolitan 
   Transportation Commission for the FY2024-2025 allocation of Transportation 
   Development Act and State Transit Assistance funds. 
 

c. ACTION ITEM: Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) 
(see attachment: tab #5) 

   Requested Action: Adopt Resolution #240327C authorizing the execution of  
   the ECCTA FY2024 Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) project. 
 
 
 
 
8. BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS 

Under this item, Directors are limited to providing information, asking clarifying questions 
about matters not on the agenda, responding to public comment, referring matters to staff, 
or requesting a report be made at another meeting. 
 

 
 

9. ADJOURN 
Next Meeting: April 24, 2024, at 4:00 p.m., 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509. 

https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx


Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday March 27, 2024 

Available Online: https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx 
 

 

https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx


 

TAB 1 
Agenda Item #5 

Consent Calendar (ACTION ITEM): Minutes, Financial Report and  
Marketing Activities Report  

 

 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday March 27, 2024 

ECCTA Boardroom 
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509 

  



EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY  
Antioch - Brentwood - Pittsburg - Oakley and Contra Costa County 

 
MINUTES 

 
February 28, 2024 

 
 
The Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (ECCTA) meeting was called to order in the 
ECCTA Board Room, 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, California by Chair Thorpe at 4:00 P.M. 
 
ROLL CALL / CALL TO ORDER 
 
BOARD MEMBERS 

PRESENT:      Dionne Adams (Pittsburg)*; Joel Bryant (Brentwood); Diane Burgis (Contra 
Costa County); Merl Craft (Member-at-Large); Federal Glover (Contra Costa 
County); Tony Oerlemans (Brentwood; Shanelle Scales-Preston (Pittsburg)*; 
Shannon Shaw (Oakley); Monica Wilson (Antioch); Lamar Hernandez-
Thorpe (Antioch/ Chair) 

     *arrived after roll 
 
ABSENT:  Anissa Williams (Oakley) 
  
STAFF PRESENT:  Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
  Toan Tran, Chief Operating Officer (COO)  
  Eli Flushman, General Counsel  
    Agustin Diaz, Manager of Planning and Grants  
  Rosanna Dominguez, Executive Assistant 
     Joe Chappelle, Manager of Administrative Services 
    Tania Babcock, Compliance Manger 
    Leeann Lorono, Manager of Customer Service and Marketing 
    DeAnna Perry, Manager of Accessible Services 
    Sam Tolley, Director of Maintenance  
  
    
   
OTHERS  
PRESENT:    Myeisha Williams, TransDev Assistant General Manager  
    Ben Trejo , TransDev Safety Manager 
    Debra Steidle, Paratransit Coordinator  
       
  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Chair Thorpe led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
 
 
 
  
 



PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Tasha Johnson, Director of Human Resources for Antioch gave public comment expressing 
gratitude for Tri Delta Transit’s participation at the recent un-housed event hosted by the City of 
Antioch. Tri Delta Transit was able to support four different stops to help everyone get to where 
they needed.  
 
 
CHAIR’S REPORT 
 
Tomorrow at 6:30 pm at Delta Bay is the Antioch Black History Month closing ceremony where 
several deserving individuals will be receiving the Key to the City. Chair Hernandez-Thorpe 
expressed gratitude to Director Glover for his years of service and for being a champion for the people 
of Eastern Contra Costa County.  
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
On motion by Director Craft, seconded by Director Oerlemans, ECCTA Board members adopted 
the Consent Calendar below, which was carried by the following vote: 
 
A. Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting of January 24, 2024 
B. Financial Report 
C. Marketing and Customer Service Activities Report 
 
AYES: Adams, Bryant, Burgis, Craft, Glover, Oerlemans, Scales-Preston, Shaw, Wilson, 

Hernandez-Thorpe 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Williams 
 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
A.  Operations Report 

 
Chief Executive Officer Rashidi Barnes also recognized Director Glover as not only a pillar in the 
community but also for his work internationally as well.  
 
Mr. Barnes highlighted SB925 as a spot bill for the 2026 regional measure. He reviewed the five 
key points that operators have asked to be considered in the final bill and the language that is being 
considered. Mr. Barnes reported that he and the general managers from County Connection, 
LAVTA and WestCat met with Senator Glazer to discuss their position on SB 925.  
 
Mr. Barnes announced the Clipper 2 paratransit integration, currently, Tri Delta Transit is 
scheduled to have this implemented in 2025/2026. 
 
Mr. Barnes also gave information on the Transformation Task Force meetings he is attending. He 
invited board members to join staff at the Transit Appreciation Day on March 21st. Mr. Barnes 
gave a gentle reminder for submission of the Annual Statement of Economic Interests Form, this 
is to be completed by April via Netfile.  



 
 
Mark Foley, Vice President, BART Board of Directors gave a presentation on updates and 
improvements that BART has made to adapt to the changing demographic riding BART. Some of 
these improvements include safety, cleanliness, and increased availability for those commuting on 
BART.  
 
 
 
ACTION ITEM AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 
A. Drug and Alcohol Program 
 
Manager of Administrative Services Joe Chappelle reported that the FTA regularly audits the Drug 
and Alcohol Program. Due to a backlog the FTA has not performed an audit since 2008 for Tri Delta 
Transit. An audit was recently performed on December 4, 2023 with the results reported, the findings 
being minor dealing with language adjustments to the program to maintain compliance with DOT and 
FTA regulations.   
 
On motion by Director Glover, seconded by Director Burgis, ECCTA Board members adopted 
resolution #240228A authorizing the changes to ECCTA’s Drug and Alcohol Program as a result 
of the December 2023 FTA Drug and Alcohol Program audit, which was carried by the following 
vote: 
 
AYES: Adams, Bryant, Burgis, Craft, Glover, Oerlemans, Scales-Preston, Shaw, Wilson, 

Thorpe 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Williams 
 
 
B. Vehicle Disposal 
 
Manager of Administrative Services Joe Chappelle, presented the disposal of eight 40-foot buses that 
have fully depreciated and if approved by the board will be sold at a public auction. JPA members are 
able to purchase these buses prior to the auction for $5 if requested by March 19, after this date the 
buses will be taken to auction.    
 
On motion by Director Glover, seconded by Director Adams, board members adopted resolution 
#240228B authorizing the disposal of eight 2009 40-foot Gillig buses using a two-pronged 
approach. JPA members will have the first opportunity to bid on the vehicles for $5 each until 
March 19 2024. The remaining vehicles will be sold at public auction following March 19, 2024, 
which was carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Adams, Bryant, Burgis, Craft, Glover, Oerlemans, Scales-Preston, Shaw, Wilson, 

Thorpe 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Williams 
 
 



 
 
C. 2024 Summer Youth Pass Program  
 
Manager of Customer Service and Marketing Leeann Lorono presented the Summer Youth Pass 
Program. There have been no changes to this program since last season and if approved, passes 
will be sold again this summer. Tri Delta Transit sells the most passes out of the three agencies that 
participate. If technology improves data around the use of these passes in terms of rides will be of 
interest to the board.  
 
On motion by Director Burgis, seconded by Director Scales-Preston, authorization was given 
for staff to enter into an agreement with 511 Contra Costa enabling Tri Delta Transit to market and 
sell the $60 unlimited -ride 2024 summer youth pass to passengers ages 5-17 for $30, which was 
carried by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES: Adams, Bryant, Burgis, Craft, Glover, Oerlemans, Scales-Preston, Shaw, Wilson, 

Thorpe 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Williams 
 
 
D. Regional Measure 3 Allocation Requests  
 
Chief Operating Officer Toan Tran reviewed the Regional Measure 3 program, and reviewed the 
approval process needed for Tri Delta Transit to acquire the funds. Mr. Tran also reviewed the 
allocation of funds if approved that includes placing $3.5 million towards the construction of the 
hydrogen fueling station and $3.2 million towards the purchase of #25 40-foot hydrogen fuel cell 
buses.  
 
On motion by Director Glover, seconded by Burgis, b o a r d  m e m b e r s  a d o p t e d  
resolution #240228D authorizing the CEO to submit two allocation requests to MTC for RM 3 
funds, which was carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Adams, Bryant, Burgis, Craft, Glover, Oerlemans, Scales-Preston, Shaw, Wilson, 

Thorpe 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Williams 
 
 
E. Comprehensive Operational Analysis  
 
Chief Operating Officer Toan Tran presented the comprehensive operational analysis components 
and business justification for performing the analysis. Mr. Tran stated that an RFP was issued last 
November, with proposals being due in January 2024. The panel consisted of Tri Delta Transit staff, 
CCTA staff and a member of the County. Mr. Tran reviewed the areas of technical evaluation and 
reported that out of all the proposers, Nelson/Nygaard stood above the rest.  
 
Discussion was had around what the outcome could mean for eastern Contra Costa County. The 
process that the comprehensive operational analysis will follow in terms of outreach, collaboration 



with the cities, county and other transportation agencies within eastern Contra Costa County.  
 
On motion by Director Glover, seconded by Director Craft, board members adopted resolution 
#240228E authorizing the CEO to enter into a contract for a comprehensive operational analysis with 
Nelson/Nygaard in the amount not to exceed $397,000: 
 
 
 
AYES: Adams, Bryant, Burgis, Craft, Glover, Oerlemans, Scales-Preston, Shaw, Wilson, 

Thorpe 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Williams 
 
 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENT 
 
The following Board of Directors commented: 
Director Adams  
Director Bryant  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting of the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority adjourned at 5:07p.m. until March 27, 
2024, at 4:00 p.m. in the ECCTA Administrative Facility, 801 Wilbur Ave Antioch, California.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Rosanna Dominguez 
 
Executive Assistant  
 

 
 

 



TR
I D

EL
TA

 T
R

AN
SI

T
In

co
m

e 
St

at
em

en
t -

  C
om

pa
ris

on
 to

 A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t
As

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

29
, 2

02
4

(u
na

ud
ite

d)

EC
CT

A
FR

DR
EC

CT
A

FR
DR

EC
CT

A
FR

DR
EC

CT
A

FR
DR

EC
CT

A
FR

DR
O

PE
RA

TI
NG

 R
EV

EN
UE

S
Pa

ss
en

ge
r F

ar
es

1,
20

7,
99

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

79
7,

16
1

$ 
   

   
  

41
0,

83
5

$ 
   

   
  

1,
19

9,
44

1
$ 

   
  

65
2,

05
7

$ 
   

   
  

54
7,

38
4

$ 
   

   
  

8,
55

5
$

14
5,

10
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
(1

36
,5

49
)

$ 
   

   
 

1,
81

3,
29

8
$ 

   
  

98
4,

63
9

$ 
   

   
  

82
8,

65
9

$ 
   

   
  

67
%

81
%

50
%

O
th

er
 In

co
m

e
39

1,
66

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

6,
66

7
$ 

   
   

  
26

4,
99

3
$ 

   
   

  
33

2,
91

7
$ 

   
   

  
12

6,
66

4
$ 

   
   

  
20

6,
25

3
$ 

   
   

  
58

,7
43

$
3

$
 

58
,7

40
$ 

   
   

   
 

49
0,

74
1

$ 
   

   
  

19
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
  

30
0,

74
1

$ 
   

   
  

80
%

67
%

88
%

To
ta

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s:

1,
59

9,
65

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

92
3,

82
8

$ 
   

   
  

67
5,

82
8

$ 
   

   
  

1,
53

2,
35

8
$ 

   
  

77
8,

72
1

$ 
   

   
  

75
3,

63
7

$ 
   

   
  

67
,2

98
$

14
5,

10
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
(7

7,
80

9)
$ 

   
   

   
2,

30
4,

03
9

$ 
   

  
1,

17
4,

63
9

$ 
   

  
1,

12
9,

40
0

$ 
   

  
69

%
79

%
60

%

NO
N-

O
PE

RA
TI

NG
 R

EV
EN

UE
S

Fe
de

ra
l F

un
ds

1,
71

2,
10

9
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$

 
1,

71
2,

10
9

$ 
   

  
1,

14
1,

40
5

$ 
   

  
-

$
 

1,
14

1,
40

5
$ 

   
  

57
0,

70
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

57
0,

70
4

$ 
   

   
  

1,
71

2,
10

9
$ 

   
  

-
$

 
1,

71
2,

10
9

$ 
   

  
10

0%
10

0%
St

at
e 

Fu
nd

s
13

,4
80

,7
60

$ 
   

   
  

11
,2

66
,9

66
$ 

   
 

2,
21

3,
79

4
$ 

   
  

17
,3

31
,0

14
$ 

   
 

13
,7

98
,3

64
$ 

   
 

3,
53

2,
65

0
$ 

   
  

(3
,8

50
,2

54
)

$ 
   

   
  

(2
,5

31
,3

98
)

$ 
   

   
  

(1
,3

18
,8

56
)

$ 
   

 
25

,9
68

,6
65

$ 
   

 
20

,5
89

,3
62

$ 
   

 
5,

37
9,

30
3

$ 
   

  
52

%
55

%
41

%
Lo

ca
l F

un
ds

1,
33

7,
42

9
$ 

   
   

   
 

50
2,

96
2

$ 
   

   
  

83
4,

46
7

$ 
   

   
  

1,
83

6,
85

6
$ 

   
  

79
7,

06
4

$ 
   

   
  

1,
03

9,
79

2
$ 

   
  

(4
99

,4
27

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

(2
94

,1
02

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

(2
05

,3
25

)
$ 

   
   

 
2,

75
5,

28
7

$ 
   

  
1,

19
5,

59
6

$ 
   

  
1,

55
9,

69
1

$ 
   

  
49

%
42

%
54

%
In

te
r-O

pe
ra

to
r A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
-

$
-

$
 

-
$

 
1,

68
8,

05
6

$ 
   

  
1,

68
8,

05
6

$ 
   

  
-

$
 

(1
,6

88
,0

56
)

$ 
   

   
  

(1
,6

88
,0

56
)

$ 
   

   
  

-
$

 
2,

53
2,

08
5

$ 
   

  
2,

53
2,

08
5

$ 
   

  
-

$
 

n /
a

In
te

re
st

 &
 O

th
er

 M
is

c 
In

co
m

e
72

,9
35

$
 

1 5
,4

83
$ 

   
   

   
 

57
,4

52
$ 

   
   

   
 

39
,9

96
$ 

   
   

   
 

33
,3

32
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
66

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

32
,9

39
$

(1
7,

84
9)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

50
,7

88
$ 

   
   

   
 

60
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
2%

31
%

57
5%

To
ta

l N
on

-o
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s:

16
,6

03
,2

33
$ 

   
   

  
11

,7
85

,4
11

$ 
   

 
4,

81
7,

82
2

$ 
   

  
22

,0
37

,3
27

$ 
   

 
16

,3
16

,8
16

$ 
   

 
5,

72
0,

51
1

$ 
   

  
(5

,4
34

,0
94

)
$ 

   
   

  
(4

,5
31

,4
05

)
$ 

   
   

  
(9

02
,6

89
)

$ 
   

   
 

33
,0

28
,1

46
$ 

   
 

24
,3

67
,0

43
$ 

   
 

8,
66

1,
10

3
$ 

   
  

50
%

48
%

56
%

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s:
18

,2
02

,8
89

$ 
   

   
  

12
,7

09
,2

39
$ 

   
 

5,
49

3,
65

0
$ 

   
  

23
,5

69
,6

85
$ 

   
 

17
,0

95
,5

37
$ 

   
 

6,
47

4,
14

8
$ 

   
  

(5
,3

66
,7

96
)

$ 
   

   
  

(4
,3

86
,2

98
)

$ 
   

   
  

(9
80

,4
98

)
$ 

   
   

 
35

,3
32

,1
85

$ 
   

 
25

,5
41

,6
82

$ 
   

 
9,

79
0,

50
3

$ 
   

  

O
PE

RA
TI

NG
 E

XP
EN

SE
S

Pu
rc

ha
se

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n

13
,6

35
,2

41
$ 

   
   

  
8,

77
7,

95
5

$ 
   

  
4,

85
7,

28
6

$ 
   

  
13

,6
44

,9
14

$ 
   

 
8,

81
6,

58
2

$ 
   

  
4,

82
8,

33
2

$ 
   

  
9,

67
3

$
38

,6
27

$
(2

8,
95

4)
$ 

   
   

   
20

,4
59

,2
35

$ 
   

 
13

,1
45

,9
45

$ 
   

 
7,

31
3,

29
0

$ 
   

  
67

%
67

%
66

%
M

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 S
up

pl
ie

s
3,

10
2,

92
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

45
4,

79
1

$ 
   

  
64

8,
13

5
$ 

   
   

  
3,

56
8,

68
8

$ 
   

  
2,

87
9,

73
9

$ 
   

  
68

8,
94

9
$ 

   
   

  
46

5,
76

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

42
4,

94
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
40

,8
14

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

33
8,

84
4

$ 
   

  
4,

29
6,

98
1

$ 
   

  
1,

04
1,

86
3

$ 
   

  
58

%
57

%
62

%
Sa

la
rie

s 
& 

Be
ne

fit
s

3,
75

7,
93

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

3,
22

8,
33

5
$ 

   
  

52
9,

60
3

$ 
   

   
  

4,
25

7,
55

6
$ 

   
  

3,
74

6,
65

6
$ 

   
  

51
0,

90
0

$ 
   

   
  

49
9,

61
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
51

8,
32

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

(1
8,

70
3)

$ 
   

   
   

6,
38

6,
33

2
$ 

   
  

5,
61

9,
98

0
$ 

   
  

76
6,

35
2

$ 
   

   
  

59
%

57
%

69
%

Se
rv

ic
es

82
2,

18
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

59
9,

87
4

$ 
   

   
  

22
2,

30
7

$ 
   

   
  

82
0,

54
6

$ 
   

   
  

59
9,

56
6

$ 
   

   
  

22
0,

98
0

$ 
   

   
  

(1
,6

35
)

$
 

(3
08

)
$

 
( 1

,3
27

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
23

0,
81

8
$ 

   
  

89
9,

35
0

$ 
   

   
  

33
1,

46
8

$ 
   

   
  

67
%

67
%

67
%

O
th

er
26

0,
16

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
21

2,
43

8
$ 

   
   

  
47

,7
25

$ 
   

   
   

 
30

5,
20

8
$ 

   
   

  
26

3,
26

2
$ 

   
   

  
41

,9
46

$ 
   

   
   

 
45

,0
45

$
50

,8
24

$
(5

,7
79

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

45
9,

75
3

$ 
   

   
  

39
6,

14
5

$ 
   

   
  

63
,6

08
$ 

   
   

   
 

57
%

54
%

75
%

C
as

ua
lty

 a
nd

 li
ab

ilit
y 

in
su

ra
nc

e
85

4,
03

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
70

3,
68

1
$ 

   
   

  
15

0,
35

6
$ 

   
   

  
76

9,
99

2
$ 

   
   

  
61

8,
06

4
$ 

   
   

  
15

1,
92

8
$ 

   
   

  
(8

4,
04

5)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(8

5,
61

7)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

57
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

15
4,

99
1

$ 
   

  
92

7,
09

7
$ 

   
   

  
22

7,
89

4
$ 

   
   

  
74

%
76

%
66

%
U

til
iti

es
21

5,
57

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
18

0,
16

8
$ 

   
   

  
35

,4
06

$ 
   

   
   

 
18

7,
71

1
$ 

   
   

  
16

0,
01

2
$ 

   
   

  
27

,6
99

$ 
   

   
   

 
(2

7,
86

3)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(2

0,
15

6)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(7

,7
07

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

28
2,

33
4

$ 
   

   
  

24
0,

78
7

$ 
   

   
  

41
,5

47
$ 

   
   

   
 

76
%

75
%

85
%

Ta
xe

s
16

,7
74

$
 

12
,4

34
$ 

   
   

   
 

4,
34

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

15
,0

70
$ 

   
   

   
 

11
,6

56
$ 

   
   

   
 

3,
41

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

(1
,7

04
)

$
 

(7
78

)
$

 
(9

26
)

$
 

19
,8

78
$  

   
   

   
 

15
,3

97
$ 

   
   

   
 

4,
48

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

84
%

81
%

97
%

To
ta

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
:

22
,6

64
,8

34
$ 

   
   

  
16

,1
69

,6
76

$ 
   

 
6,

49
5,

15
8

$ 
   

  
23

,5
69

,6
85

$ 
   

 
17

,0
95

,5
37

$ 
   

 
6,

47
4,

14
8

$ 
   

  
90

4,
85

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

92
5,

86
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
(2

1,
01

0)
$ 

   
   

   
35

,3
32

,1
85

$ 
   

 
25

,5
41

,6
82

$ 
   

 
9,

79
0,

50
3

$ 
   

  
64

%
63

%
66

%

EX
CE

SS
 R

EV
/(E

XP
)

(4
,4

61
,9

45
)

$ 
   

   
   

(3
,4

60
,4

37
)

$ 
   

 
(1

,0
01

,5
08

)
$ 

   
 

0
$

 
0

$
 

-
$

 
4,

46
1,

94
5

$ 
   

   
   

3,
46

0,
43

7
$ 

   
   

   
1,

00
1,

50
8

$ 
   

  
0

$
 

0
$

 
-

$
 

A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

 #
5b

E
as

te
rn

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
it 

A
ut

ho
rit

y
B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s 

M
ee

tin
g 

M
ar

ch
 2

7,
 2

02
4

YT
D

 %
 o

f  
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
Bu

dg
et

YT
D 

Ac
tu

al
YT

D 
Bu

dg
et

YT
D 

Va
ria

nc
e

fa
vo

ra
bl

e/
(u

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

FY
24

 F
ul

l Y
ea

r B
ud

ge
t 



Agenda Item #5c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
March 27, 2024 

 
 
 

 

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors 
Meeting Date: March 27, 2024 

 
Agenda Item: Marketing/Communications Activities – Agenda Item #5c 

 
Lead Staff: Leeann Loroño, Manager of Customer Service and Marketing 

 
Approved: Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Tri Delta Transit strives to provide top notch service to our customers and the community, as 
well as communicate the pivotal role Tri Delta Transit plays.  Here are some projects Marketing 
has been working on. 
 
 

  

March Marketing Campaign  
 
March is a special month in transit.  March 18th is 
National Transit Driver Appreciation Day. In California 
though, we go big (as big as Texas). The 27 Bay Area 
agencies recognize this day as Transit Employee 
Appreciation Day and are influencing the country.  We 
celebrate and advertise all month long, as well as had 
an internal celebration at this month’s in-service 
meeting.  Shown here: Grapevine ad and on-bus car 
cards.  
 

 

 

Special Event  
 
Transit Employee Appreciation Day celebration.  Thank 
you to all who attended.  At this event, we mingled, met 
and appreciated others in transit.  The highlights were 
recognition of the staff, the special gift, and the 
delicious lunch – but more importantly that the ‘family’ 
was together.  We look forward to sharing the pictures.  

   TRI DELTA TRANSIT 



Agenda Item #5c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
March 27, 2024 

 
 
 

 

 

          

Notable Recognitions 
 
Tri Delta Transit honors and celebrates the following:   
  

• National Transit Employee Appreciation Day on 
Monday, March 18th.   

• Women’s History Month – Tri Delta Transit 
recognized three of our own who have a long 
history of service to the agency with impressive 
contributions:  Merl Craft, Jeanne Krieg, and 
Barbara Guise.  

 
 

    

  
 

March Notification to the Public 
 
Tri Delta Transit keeps our communities informed of 
items that may have an impact on them.  This month 
was:  
 

1. Daylight Savings Time  
2. Caltrans Transit Plan Survey 
3. 511 Contra Costa Leap onto Transit promotion 
4. Safety warnings due to bad weather  

 
Leap onto Transit was a 511 promotion, in conjunction 
with Tri Delta Transit, whereby you could apply to 
receive a 20-ride pass if you are 18 years or older and 
commute to work at least once a week.  We are happy 
to say that Leap onto Transit was a success with 325 
applications received during the 1 ½-2 weeks of the 
promotion.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item #5c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
March 27, 2024 

 
 
 

 

 

   

   
 
 

Out in the Community 
In February and March, Tri Delta Transit was out and 
about in the community at these notable events:  
 

1. City of Antioch’s Key Ceremony and Black History 
Month Celebration 

2. Los Medanos College Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. 
luncheon, Pittsburg   

3. Oakley Chamber Mixer at Whiskey Tango Foxtrot 
4. Lunar New Year Festival, Brentwood  
 

 

Ongoing Projects:   
 

      
 
      
 
        
 

Transit Takes You Places 
 
Riders are encouraged to take public transportation to 
get to and from events safely.   Tri Delta Transit takes 
you to most major points of interest in eastern Contra 
Costa County like these: 
 

• Craft and Vendor Fair, Pocahontas Hall, Oakley 
• Lunar New Year celebrations, Downtown 

Brentwood  
 
If you have an event that a Tri Delta Transit route goes 
near or to, send it to comments@eccta.org, and we will 
let riders know.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:comments@eccta.org


Agenda Item #5c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
March 27, 2024 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Website Reimagined 
 
The website redesign is moving along the development 
phase getting closer and closer every day.   
 

 
SOCIAL MEDIA ANALYTICS 
Following please find a brief summary of metrics for the Tri Delta Transit social media accounts.   
 
MAIN ACCOUNTS MONTHS   
Followers DECEMBER 

2023 
JANUARY  

2024 
FEBRUARY 

2024 
Facebook 1.3k 1.3k 1.3k 
Instagram 989 988 994 
X (Twitter)  1,042 1,047 1,054 
LinkedIn  504  545 

 
ALERT ACCOUNTS MONTHS   
Followers DECEMBER 

2023 
JANUARY  

2024 
FEBRUARY 

2024 
Facebook 46 49 53 
Instagram 80 78 78 
X (Twitter)   15 15 22 

*Instagram back  
 
X (TWITTER) MONTHS   
 DECEMBER 

2023 
JANUARY  

2024 
FEBRUARY 

2024 
Impressions 4,528 3,675 4,332 
Engagement* Not shown * * 
Retweets* 12 * * 
Likes – New* 15 * * 

• X is reportedly working on their analytics page.  
Please let us know if you have any questions or need further information about any of these 
materials. 



 

TAB 2 
Agenda Item #6a 

CEO Report    

 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday March 27, 2024 

ECCTA Boardroom 
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509 

  



AGENCY NAME

All

Fixed Route MedVan MOD
Paratransit TMR

567567
4,1574,157

8,7388,738

9,4189,418118,604

95,724

Total Riders:

+28.35%
vs. Prior Year

On Time Early Late

0.7%0.7%

18.0%18.0%

On Time:

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Demand Response
Fixed Route

0.00%

2.90%

5.80%

Non-Preventable Preventable

This Year Last Year

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

0.000.00

1.011.01

1.261.26

0.670.67

Fix
ed

 Ro
ut

e

M
ed

Va
n

M
OD

One
 Se

at

Pa
rat

ran
sit

TM
R

This Year Last Year

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

7.67.6

5.55.5

2.02.0

1.71.7

3.93.9
3.83.8

2.72.7 2.72.7
2.52.5

5.15.1

4.34.3

Performance Summary

Ridership

On Time Performance

Accidents / 100K Miles

Cost Recovery Ratio

Passengers Per Revenue Hour

81.3%

Jan/FY2024

Month - Fiscal Year

Overview 03/21/2024

Page 1/5



  

Values 0 88.06%

   

YTD 2023

YTD 2024

4

4

0.67

1.26

 Accidents Per 100,000 Miles

Aug/FY2024

Sep/FY2024

Oct/FY2024

Nov/FY2024

Jan/FY2024

2

3

3

2

4

0.55

0.91

0.87

0.64

1.26

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

4

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

Preventable - This Year Preventable - Last Year

0.0

0.3

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

Non-Preventable - This Year Non-Preventable - Last Year

0.0

0.4

0.8

1.2

1.6

2.0

Safety Performance

Preventable Accident Report Preventable Accidents Per 100,000 Miles
Last Six Months - System Wide

Non-Preventable Accidents Per 100,000 Miles
Last Six Months - System Wide

Non-Preventable Preventable

This Year Last Year

0.00

0.30

0.60

0.90

1.20

1.50

1.011.01

1.261.26

0.670.67

YTD Change

Year To Date - System Wide
Accidents Per 100,000 Miles

Page 2/5



Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

This Year Last Year

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

This Year Last Year

0.0%

17.0%

34.0%

51.0%

68.0%

85.0%

Fixed Route Performance

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

This Year Last Year

$0.00

$40.00

$80.00

$120.00

$160.00

$200.00

Total Ridership On Time Performance Operating Cost Per
Revenue Hour

Passengers Per Revenue Hour

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

This Year Last Year

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0 Metric This Year Prior Year % Change

Customer
Service

% of Trips On Time

Average Miles Between Roadcalls

Complaints Per 100k Riders

Ridership Per Rev. Hour

Financial Operating Costs Per Rev. Hour

Ridership Ridership

78.82

4,849.90

29.25

7.58

95,724.00

79.33

39,720.30

23.50

5.52

149.57

76,608.00

-0.6%

-87.8%

+24.5%

+37.3%

+25.0%

YTD Report - Fixed Route

Page 3/5



 Metric This Year Prior Year % Change

Customer
Service

% of Trips On Time

Complaints Per 100k Riders

Ridership Per Rev. Hour

Financial Operating Costs Per Rev. Hour

Ridership Ridership

90.71

103.00

2.66

8,738.00

93.43

263.11

2.48

160.12

5,321.00

-2.9%

-60.9%

+7.3%

+64.2%

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

This Year Last Year

0.0

0.6

1.2

1.8

2.4

3.0

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

This Year Last Year

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

MedVan, Paratransit, and MOD
Performance

Total Ridership Passengers Per Revenue Hour

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

This Year Last Year

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

MedVan

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

This Year Last Year

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

 Metric This Year Prior Year % Change

Customer
Service

% of Trips On Time

Complaints Per 100k Riders

Ridership Per Rev. Hour

Financial Operating Costs Per Rev. Hour

Ridership Ridership

94.81

176.37

1.98

567.00

95.68

0.00

1.65

131.82

760.00

-0.9%

+20.0%

-25.4%

Paratransit

Total Ridership Passengers Per Revenue Hour

YTD Report

YTD Report

Page 4/5



 Metric This Year Prior Year % Change

Customer
Service

Complaints Per 100k Riders

Ridership Per Rev. Hour

Financial Operating Costs Per Rev. Hour

Ridership Ridership

0.00

3.94

4,157.00

0.00

3.82

97.61

2,631.00

+3.1%

+58.0%

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

This Year Last Year

0

900

1,800

2,700

3,600

4,500

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

This Year Last Year

0.0

0.9

1.8

2.7

3.6

4.5

 Metric This Year Prior Year % Change

Customer
Service

Complaints Per 100k Riders

Ridership Per Rev. Hour

Financial Operating Costs Per Rev. Hour

Ridership Ridership

53.09

5.06

9,418.00

64.09

4.32

130.86

6,241.00

-17.2%

+17.1%

+50.9%

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

This Year Last Year

0

2,500

5,000

7,500

10,000

12,500

Aug
/F

Y2
02

4

Se
p/

FY
20

24

Oct/
FY

20
24

Nov
/F

Y2
02

4

Dec
/F

Y2
02

4

Ja
n/

FY
20

24

This Year Last Year

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

MOD

YTD Report

Passengers Per Revenue HourTotal Ridership

TMR

YTD Report

Passengers Per Revenue HourTotal Ridership

Page 5/5



 

TAB 3 
Agenda Item #7a 

ACTION ITEM: 2024 DBE Program 

 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday March 27, 2024 

ECCTA Boardroom 
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509 

  







 
 

RESOLUTION #240327A 
2024 DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) PROGRAM  

 
Resolution #240327A approves ECCTA’s 2024 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program 
and authorizes staff to submit the program to the FTA. 
 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26, Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
(ECCTA) is a Federal grantee awarded $250,000 or more in U.S. Department of Transportation 
(DOT) Federal financial assistance; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a condition of receiving Federal financial assistance, ECCTA must prepare a 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program in compliance with 49 CFR Part 26; and 
 
WHEREAS, ECCTA has prepared an updated Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program in 
compliance with 49 CFR Part 26. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Eastern Contra 
Costa Transit Authority to adopt Resolution #240327A approving the 2024 Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise Program and authorizing staff to submit the program to the FTA.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27th day of March 2024, by the following votes: 
 
 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
 

 

_____________________________                     ________________________________ 

Lamar Hernandez-Thorpe, Chair                     Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 

 

AYES:  _____    
NOES:    _____ 
ABSENT:  _____ 
ABSTENTIONS: _____  



  

 

 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

Program 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
Updated March 2024 
 

Contact Information:  
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
(ECCTA)- Recipient ID 5617  
Tania Babcock 
Compliance Manager 
(925) 754-6622  
civilrights@eccta.org 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 2 
 

Table of Contents 
POLICY STATEMENT AND PROGRAM OBJECTIVES (§26.1, 26.23) .............................................................. 4 

SUBPART A – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS .................................................................................................... 5 

Objectives (§26.1) .................................................................................................................................. 5 

Applicability (§26.3) ............................................................................................................................... 5 

Definitions (§26.5) .................................................................................................................................. 5 

Non-discrimination Requirements (§26.7) ............................................................................................. 5 

Record Keeping Requirements (§26.11) ................................................................................................ 5 

Reporting to DOT (§26.11b)................................................................................................................... 5 

Bidders List: (§26.11c)............................................................................................................................ 5 

Assurances (§26.13) ............................................................................................................................... 6 

Federal Financial Assistance Agreement Assurance (§26.13a) .............................................................. 6 

Contract Assurance (§26.13b) ............................................................................................................... 6 

SUBPART B - ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................ 7 

DBE Program Updates (§26.21) ............................................................................................................. 7 

Policy Statement (§26.23) ...................................................................................................................... 7 

DBE Liaison Officer (§26.25) ................................................................................................................... 7 

DBE Financial Institutions (§26.27) ........................................................................................................ 8 

Prompt Payment Mechanisms (§26.29) ................................................................................................. 8 

Directory (§26.31) .................................................................................................................................. 9 

Overconcentration (§26.33) ................................................................................................................... 9 

Business Development Programs (§26.35) ............................................................................................ 9 

Monitoring Responsibilities (§26.37) ..................................................................................................... 9 

Monitoring and Enforcement Mechanisms ........................................................................................... 9 

Prompt Payment Dispute Resolution .................................................................................................. 10 

Prompt Payment Complaints ............................................................................................................... 10 

Enforcement Actions for Noncompliance of Participants ................................................................... 11 

Fostering Small Business Participation (§26.39) .................................................................................. 11 

SUBPART C - GOALS, GOOD FAITH EFFORTS, AND COUNTING ................................................................ 13 

Set-asides or Quotas (§26.43) .............................................................................................................. 13 

Overall Goals (§26.45) .......................................................................................................................... 13 

Meeting Overall Goals and Accountability (§26.47) ............................................................................. 13 

Transit Vehicle Manufacturers Goals (§26.49) ..................................................................................... 13 

Breakout of Estimated Race-Neutral & Race-Conscious Participation (§26.51a-c) ............................. 14 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 3 
 

Contract Goals (§26.51d-g) .................................................................................................................. 14 

Good Faith Efforts Procedures (§26.53) ............................................................................................... 15 

Demonstration of good faith efforts (§26.53a&c) ............................................................................... 15 

Counting DBE Participation (§26.55) .................................................................................................... 15 

SUBPART D - CERTIFICATION STANDARDS ................................................................................................ 16 

Certification Process (§26.61 - 26.73) .................................................................................................. 16 

SUBPART E - CERTIFICATION PROCEDURES .............................................................................................. 17 

Unified Certification Programs (§26.81-§26.83) .................................................................................. 17 

Procedures for Certification Decisions (§26.83) ................................................................................... 17 

Re-certifications (§26.83a&c) .............................................................................................................. 17 

Information, Confidentiality, Cooperation (§26.109) ........................................................................... 17 

ATTACHMENTS ..................................................................................................................................... 18 

Attachment 1- Definitions ................................................................................................................... 19 

Attachment 2- Organizational Chart .................................................................................................... 25 

Attachment 3- Record of DBE Compliance Monitoring ....................................................................... 26 

Attachment 4- Record of Commercially Useful Function Report ........................................................ 28 

Attachment 5- Overall Goal Calculation (§26.45) ................................................................................ 32 

Attachment 6- Regulations: 49 CFR Part 26 ........................................................................................ 33 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 4 
 

 

POLICY STATEMENT AND PROGRAM OBJECTIVES (§26.1, 

26.23) 

 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (ECCTA) has established a Disadvantaged Business 

Enterprise (DBE) program in accordance with regulations of the U.S. Department of 

Transportation (DOT), 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 26. As a recipient of 

Federal financial assistance from the DOT, ECCTA has signed an assurance that it will 

comply with 49 CFR Part 26. 

 
It is the policy of ECCTA to ensure that DBEs, as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, have an equal 

opportunity to receive and participate in DOT-assisted contracts. The objectives of the DBE 

Program include: 

 
1. Ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts; 

2. Create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for DOT-assisted 

contracts; 

3. Ensure that the DBE Program is narrowly tailored in accordance with applicable law; 

4. Ensure that only firms that fully meet 49 CFR Part 26 eligibility standards are 

permitted to participate as DBEs; 

5. Help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs in DOT-assisted contracts; and 

6. Adhere to the adopted ECCTA purchasing policy principles throughout all aspects of 

the DBE Program. 

 
ECCTA’s CEO has designated the Compliance Manager as the DBE Liaison Officer 

(DBELO). In that capacity, the Compliance Manager is responsible for implementing all 

aspects of the DBE program.  Implementation of the DBE program has the same priority as 

compliance with all other legal obligations incurred by ECCTA in its financial assistance 

agreements with the DOT. 

 
ECCTA has disseminated this policy statement to its Board of Directors and to all 

departments of its organization.  This policy statement is disseminated to members of the 

DBE and non-DBE business communities that perform or are interested in performing work 

on ECCTA’s DOT-assisted contracts.  The policy statement is on the Tri Delta Transit 

website at www.TriDeltaTransit.com.  Questions regarding ECCTA’s DBE Program should 

be addressed to DBE Liaison Officer, 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509, telephone 

925-754-6622, fax 925-757-2530, email civilrights@eccta.org. 
 
 
 

        3/1/2024 
______________________     ___________    
Rashidi Barnes, CEO     Date   
  
 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 5 
 

SUBPART A – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Objectives (§26.1)  

The objectives are found in the policy statement on page four of this Disadvantaged Business 

Enterprise Program. 

 

Applicability (§26.3) 

ECCTA is the recipient of federal transit funds authorized by Congress and administered 

through the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).  

 
Definitions (§26.5) 

ECCTA will adopt the definitions contained in §26.5 for this Disadvantaged Business 

Enterprise Program.  §26.5 definitions are outlined in Attachment 1 of this program. 

 
Non-discrimination Requirements (§26.7) 

ECCTA will never exclude any person from participation in, deny any person the benefits 

of, or otherwise discriminate against anyone in connection with the award and 

performance of any contract covered by 49 CFR Part 26 on the basis of race, color, sex, or 

national origin. 

 
In administering its DBE program, ECCTA will not, directly or through contractual or other 

arrangements, use criteria or methods of administration that have the effect of defeating or 

substantially impairing accomplishment of the objectives of the DBE program with respect 

to individuals of a particular race, color, sex, or national origin. 

 

Record Keeping Requirements (§26.11) 

Reporting to DOT (§26.11b) 

ECCTA will report DBE participation on a semi-annual basis to the FTA using the Uniform 

Report of DBE Awards or Commitments and Payments, found in Appendix B in the DBE 

regulation.  These reports will reflect payments actually made to DBEs on DOT-assisted 

contracts. 

• DBE participation from October 1 through March 31 (submitted by June 1). 

• DBE participation from April 1 through September 30 (submitted by December 1). 

 

Bidders List: (§26.11c) 

ECCTA will maintain a bidders list, consisting of information about all DBE and non-DBE 

firms that bid or quote on DOT-assisted contracts.  The bidders list will include the name, 

address, DBE/non-DBE status, age and annual gross receipts of firms.  ECCTA may also 

request additional information from bidders such as the type of work performed and 

associated NAICS code, although this information is not required to be provided by any 

bidders. 

 

 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 6 
 

ECCTA collects this information in the following ways: 

• A contract clause requiring prime bidders to report the name, address, DBE/non-DBE 

status, age and annual gross receipts of all firms who quote to them on subcontracts. 

• A notice in solicitations requesting firms quoting on the solicitation provide the name, 

address, DBE/non-DBE status, age and annual gross receipts of themselves and any 

planned subcontractors. 

 

Assurances (§26.13) 

ECCTA has signed the following assurances, applicable to all DOT-assisted contracts and 

their administration: 

Federal Financial Assistance Agreement Assurance (§26.13a) 

ECCTA shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in 

the award and performance of any DOT-assisted contract or in the administration of 

its DBE Program or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. The recipient shall take all 

necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in 

the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. The recipient's DBE 

Program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by DOT, is incorporated 

by reference in this agreement. Implementation of this program is a legal obligation 

and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement. 

Upon notification to ECCTA of its failure to carry out its approved program, the 

Department may impose sanction as provided for under Part 26 and may, in 

appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the 

Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.). 

 
This language will appear verbatim in all DOT-assisted contracts and in all financial 

assistance agreements with subrecipients. 

 

Contract Assurance (§26.13b) 

ECCTA will ensure that the following clause is placed in every DOT-assisted contract and 

subcontract: 

The contractor, sub-recipient, or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of 

race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor 

shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and 

administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these 

requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the 

termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate, 

which may include, but is not limited to: 

 

(1) Withholding monthly progress payments;  

(2) Assessing sanctions;  

(3) Liquidated damages; and/or  

(4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as non-responsible.  

 

This language will appear verbatim in all DOT-assisted contracts and subcontracts. 

 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 7 
 

SUBPART B - ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 
 
DBE Program Updates (§26.21)  

Since ECCTA has received a grant of $250,000 or more in FTA planning capital, and/or 

operating assistance in a federal fiscal year, ECCTA will continue to carry out this program 

until all funds from DOT financial assistance have been expended. ECCTA will provide 

updates representing significant changes in the program to DOT. 

 

Policy Statement (§26.23) 

The Policy Statement is on page four of this Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program. 

 

DBE Liaison Officer (§26.25) 

ECCTA has designated the following individual as its DBE Liaison Officer 

(DBELO):  

 

Tania Babcock 

Compliance Manager 

801 Wilbur Avenue 

Antioch, CA 94509 

phone: (925) 754-6622 

fax: (925) 757-2530 

email: civilrights@eccta.org 

 

In that capacity, the DBELO is responsible for implementing all aspects of the DBE program 

and ensuring that ECCTA complies with all provision of 49 CFR Part 26. The DBELO has 

direct, independent access to the Chief Executive Officer concerning DBE program matters. 

An organization chart displaying the DBELO's position in the organization is found in 

Attachment 2 to this program. 

 

The DBELO is responsible for developing, implementing and monitoring the DBE 

program. The duties and responsibilities include the following: 

1. Develops, implements, and updates the DBE program. 

2. Gathers and reports statistical data and other information as required by DOT. 

3. Works with all affected departments in establishing the overall DBE goal. 

4. Ensures monitoring and oversight in the DBE program. 

5. Participates in pre-bid meetings. 

6. Advises the Chief Executive Officer on the DBE program. 

7. Provides outreach to DBEs and community organizations to promote contracting 

opportunities. 

8. Ensures that bid notices and requests for proposals are available to DBEs in a 

timely manner. 

 

 

 

 

mailto:civilrights@eccta.org


ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 8 
 

DBE Financial Institutions (§26.27) 

It is the policy of ECCTA to investigate the full extent of services offered by financial 

institutions owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals in 

the community, to make reasonable efforts to use these institutions, and to encourage prime 

contractors on DOT-assisted contract to make use of these institutions.  ECCTA has made the 

following efforts to identify and use such institutions:  

• Reviewed all institutions certified as “Minority Depository Institutions (MDIs)” 

dated September 30, 2023 by using the website:  

https://www.fdic.gov/regulations/resources/minority/mdi.html 

 

To date, ECCTA has not identified any financial institutions owned and controlled by socially 

and economically disadvantaged individuals in ECCTA’s community.  ECCTA will re-

evaluate the availability of DBE financial institutions every three years when setting the 

overall DBE goal. 

 

Prompt Payment Mechanisms (§26.29) 

• ECCTA requires that all subcontractors performing work on DOT-assisted 

contracts shall be promptly paid for work performed pursuant to their agreements, 

in accordance with all relevant federal, state, and local law.  

 

• In accordance with §26.29, ECCTA established a contract clause implementing this 

requirement and requires prime contractors to pay subcontractors for satisfactory 

performance of their contracts no later than 10 days from the prime contractor’s 

receipt of each payment from ECCTA.   

 

• ECCTA ensures prompt and full payment of retainage from the prime contractor to 

the subcontractor.  Pursuant to §26.29, ECCTA has selected the following method 

to comply with this requirement:  

o For construction procurements: ECCTA will hold retainage from prime 

contractors and provide for prompt and regular incremental acceptances of 

portions of the prime contract, pay retainage to prime contractors based on 

these acceptances, and require a contract clause obligating the prime 

contractor to pay all retainage owed to the subcontractor for satisfactory 

completion of the accepted work within 10 days after ECCTA’s payment to 

the prime contractors. 

 

o For professional services procurements: ECCTA will decline to hold 

retainage and prohibit prime contractors from holding retainage from 

subcontractors. 

 

ECCTA will include the following clause in each DOT-assisted prime contract: 

The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for 

satisfactory performance of its contract no later than 10 days from the receipt of each 

payment the prime contractor receives from ECCTA. The prime contractor agrees further to 

return retainage payments to each subcontractor for satisfactory completion of the accepted 

work within 10 days after ECCTA’s payment to the prime contractor.  Any delay or 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 9 
 

postponement of payment from the above referenced time frame may occur only for good 

cause following written approval of ECCTA. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE 

subcontracts. 

 

Directory (§26.31) 

ECCTA is a non-certifying member of the California Unified Certification Program (CUCP).  

ECCTA uses the CUCP DBE directory maintained by Caltrans that identifies all firms eligible 

to participate as DBEs.  The directory lists the firm’s name, contact information, ethnicity, 

gender, certification information, and the type of work the firm has been certified to perform 

as a DBE.  The directory is updated by Caltrans in real time, as changes are made to the 

directory.  The directory may be found online at https://caltrans.dbesystem.com/ 
 

Overconcentration (§26.33) 

Since ECCTA is a federal recipient located within the jurisdiction of the U.S. Court of 

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit and subject to Western States Paving Co, Inc. v. Washington 

State Department of Transportation, 407 F.3d 983 (9th Cir. 2005), ECCTA uses race-

neutral means of achieving DBE participation.  Overconcentration of DBEs is not 

applicable to ECCTA while using race-neutral means.  However, ECCTA has not 

identified that overconcentration of DBEs exists in the types of work that DBEs perform 

on ECCTA contracts. 

 

Business Development Programs (§26.35) 

ECCTA is a member of the Business Outreach Committee (BOC) that represents Bay Area 

transit and transportation agencies.  ECCTA joined the BOC in February 2019 to assist in 

providing business development opportunities.  The BOC assists DBEs and other small 

companies with expansion of their businesses through training, technical assistance, and 

relationship-building with agency staff and the contracting community of the San Francisco 

Bay Area.  ECCTA’s DBELO participates in meetings, trainings and workshops held by the 

BOC. 

 

ECCTA provides outreach to the small business community for procurement opportunities.  

The DBELO also works with NorCal APEX Accelerator and the Small Business 

Transportation Resource Center Southwest Region as resources to provide technical 

assistance and guidance to DBEs and small businesses. 

   

Monitoring Responsibilities (§26.37) 

ECCTA implements and carries out appropriate mechanisms to ensure compliance with 49 

CFR Part 26 program requirements by all program participants, including prompt payment, 

and describes and sets forth these mechanisms in ECCTA’s DBE program. 

 

Monitoring and Enforcement Mechanisms 

• ECCTA requires prime contractors to maintain records and documents of payments to 

subcontractors, including DBEs, for a minimum of three (3) years unless otherwise 

provided by applicable record retention requirements for ECCTA’s financial assistance 

agreement, whichever is longer.  These records will be made available for inspection 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 10 
 

upon request by an authorized representative of ECCTA or DOT.  This reporting 

requirement extends to all subcontractors, both DBE and non-DBE. 

 

• ECCTA documents its monitoring and oversight processes by completing a “Record of 

DBE Compliance Monitoring” (Appendix 3) for each DOT-assisted contract with DBE 

participation.  ECCTA reviews subcontracts, monitors work sites, monitors prime 

payments to subcontractors and provides a written certification of the monitoring 

during the life of the project.  The Project Manager or DBELO is responsible for 

completing the “Record of DBE Compliance Monitoring.”   

 

• To determine the Commercially Useful Function of a DBE, ECCTA completes the 

“Record of Commercially Useful Function Report” (Appendix 4) for all DBEs on each 

DOT-assisted contract.  This is accomplished by conducting field reviews and DBE 

contractor interviews.  The Project Manager or DBELO is responsible for completing 

the “Record of Commercially Useful Function Report” and for monitoring the DBE 

firm to provide a written certification that Commercially Useful Function requirements 

are being met. 

 

• ECCTA proactively reviews contract payments to subcontractors, including DBEs at 

milestone intervals.  ECCTA uses conditional lien releases to verify payment for work 

committed to subcontractors at the time of contract award is actually paid to 

subcontractors.  ECCTA uses unconditional lien releases to verify that the entire 

payment has been made to subcontractors, which includes retention, upon completion 

of successful work. 

 

Prompt Payment Dispute Resolution 

• ECCTA will take the following step to resolve disputes as to whether work has been 

satisfactorily completed for purposes of §26.29. 

o ECCTA will hold a dispute resolution meeting between the prime contractor 

and subcontractor, along with the Project Manager or representative from 

ECCTA as appropriate.  The meeting will include those individuals who are 

authorized to bind each interested party and a representative from ECCTA with 

authority to take enforcement action. 

 

Prompt Payment Complaints 

• Complaints by subcontractors regarding the prompt payment requirements are handled 

according to the following procedure. 

o Subcontractors are to contact the prime contractor to discuss payment 

discrepancies.  If a resolution is not reached regarding the payment 

discrepancies, then the affected subcontractor may escalate the complaint to 

the Project Manager or designated representative from ECCTA.  ECCTA 

will investigate and follow up with both parties involved in the complaint 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 11 
 

resolution within 10 days.  If filing a complaint with ECCTA does not result 

in timely and meaningful action by ECCTA, the affected subcontractor may 

contact the FTA. 

 

Enforcement Actions for Noncompliance of Participants 

ECCTA will provide appropriate means to enforce the requirements of §26.29.  These means 

include: 

• ECCTA will bring to the attention of the Department of Transportation any false, 

fraudulent, or dishonest conduct in connection with the program, so that DOT can take 

steps (e.g., referral to the Department of Justice for criminal prosecution, referral to the 

DOT Inspector General, action under suspension and debarment or Program Fraud and 

Civil Penalties rules) provided in §26.109. 

• In the event of non-compliance with the DBE regulation by a participant in ECCTA’s 

procurement activities, ECCTA may choose to issue joint checks to the prime 

contractor and subcontractor to resolve the payment problem. 

 

Fostering Small Business Participation (§26.39) 

Because ECCTA is a small transit agency, contracts tend to be a size that small businesses, 

including DBEs, can reasonably perform.  In order to foster small business participation, 

ECCTA has incorporated the following non-discriminatory element into its DBE program to 

facilitate competition on DOT-assisted projects by small business concerns. 

 

• Participating in the Business Outreach Committee (BOC) of the San Francisco Bay 

Area and assisting with BOC group programs, activities and efforts in the San 

Francisco Bay Area.  These efforts help to create a level playing field on which DBEs 

and small businesses can compete fairly; enhance outreach and communication efforts 

with these firms; provide appropriate assistance and information for participation in 

DOT-assisted contracts; and develop joint resources among recipients.  

 

• Holding procurement meetings with ECCTA’s DBELO and employees from 

maintenance, purchasing and finance who are involved in purchasing decisions for 

ECCTA.  This allows ECCTA’s DBELO to provide appropriate outreach to the small 

business community prior to future procurement opportunities.   

 

• Posting on ECCTA’s website contact information of small business resources, 

including the Southwest Small Business Transportation Resource Center and Norcal 

APEX Accelerator, for small business assistance. 

 

• Posting invitations for bids and requests for proposals on ECCTA’s website. 

 

• Submitting timely solicitations, conducting pre-bid meetings and developing clearly 

written plans and specifications that facilitate small business firms’ participation. 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 12 
 

• ECCTA verifies small business size as provided in §26.65 and defined by Small 

Business Administration (SBA) standards. 

 

  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 13 
 

SUBPART C - GOALS, GOOD FAITH EFFORTS, AND 

COUNTING 
 
Set-asides or Quotas (§26.43) 

ECCTA does not use set-asides or quotas in any way in the administration of this 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise program. 

 

Overall Goals (§26.45) 

A description of the methodology used to calculate the overall goal and the goal calculation 

can be found in Attachment 6 to this program. This section of the program will be updated 

as required. 

 

In accordance with §26.45f, ECCTA will submit its triennial overall DBE goal (“Triennial 

Goal”) to the FTA by August 1of the year specified by the FTA.  Before establishing the 

Triennial Goal, ECCTA will consult with appropriate constituent groups representing 

minority, women’s and general contractor groups; community organizations; and other 

officials or organizations to obtain information concerning the availability of disadvantaged 

and non-disadvantaged businesses, the effects of discrimination on opportunities for DBEs, 

and ECCTA’s efforts to establish a level playing field for the participation of DBEs. 

 

Following this consultation, ECCTA will publish a notice of the proposed Triennial Goal on 

its website at www.TriDeltaTransit.com, informing the public that the proposed goal and its 

rational are available for inspection from 8:00am to 5:00pm, Pacific Standard Time, Monday 

through Friday,  at ECCTA administrative offices for 30 days following the date of the notice, 

and informing the public that ECCTA will accept comments on the goal for 30 days from the 

date of the notice.  Normally, ECCTA will issue this notice by June 1 of each year that the 

Triennial Goal is due.  The notice will include addresses to which comments may be sent and 

addresses (including office and website) where the proposal may be reviewed. 

 

ECCTA will begin using the Triennial Goal on October 1 of the calendar year following the 

August 1 submission to the FTA, unless other instructions have been received from the FTA.  

 

Meeting Overall Goals and Accountability (§26.47) 

If the awards and commitments shown on ECCTA’s Uniform Report of Awards or 

Commitments and Payments at the end of any federal fiscal year are less than the overall goal 

applicable to that federal fiscal year, the ECCTA DBELO will, in accordance with 49 CFR 

§26.47(c) conduct a Shortfall Analysis.  The Shortfall Analysis will analyze in detail the 

reasons for the difference between the overall goal and ECCTA’s awards and commitments in 

that federal fiscal year and establish specific steps and milestones to correct the problems 

identified in the Shortfall Analysis.  ECCTA will retain the Shortfall Analysis for three years 

and make it available to FTA upon request for review. 

 

Transit Vehicle Manufacturers Goals (§26.49) 

ECCTA will require each transit vehicle manufacturer (TVM), as a condition of being 

authorized to bid or propose on FTA-assisted transit vehicle procurements, to certify that it 

http://www.trideltatransit.com/


ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 14 
 

has complied with the requirements of this section.  

 

ECCTA will submit to FTA within 30 days of making an award, the name of the successful 

TVM bidder, and the total dollar value of the contract in the manner prescribed in the grant 

agreement. 

 

ECCTA will establish project-specific goals for DBE participation or include in the 

Triennial Goal, contracts awarded to non-Transit Vehicle Manufacturer(s) in FTA-assisted 

transit vehicle procurements. 

 

Breakout of Estimated Race-Neutral & Race-Conscious Participation (§26.51a-c) 

ECCTA uses race-neutral means of achieving DBE participation. 

 

ECCTA uses the following race-neutral means to increase DBE participation: 

• Making DBEs and other small businesses aware of opportunities. 

 

• Submitting timely solicitations, conducting pre-bid meetings and developing clearly 

written plans and specifications to facilitate DBEs and other small business firms’ 

participation. 

 

• Posting contact information on ECCTA’s website of available small business resources, 

including the Southwest Small Business Transportation Resource Center (SBTRC) and 

NorCal APEX Accelerator. 

 

For reporting purposes, race-neutral DBE participation includes, but is not necessarily limited 

to, the following:   

• DBE participation through a prime contract that a DBE obtains through customary 

competitive procurement procedures;  

 

• DBE participation through a subcontract on a prime contract that does not carry a DBE 

goal;  

 

• DBE participation through a subcontract from a prime contractor that did not consider a 

firm’s DBE status in making the award. 

 

Contract Goals (§26.51d-g) 

Contract goals are race-conscious means that take race into consideration.  Since ECCTA is 

a federal recipient located within the jurisdiction of the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth 

Circuit and subject to Western States Paving Co, Inc. v. Washington State Department of 

Transportation, 407 F.3d 983 (9th Cir. 2005), ECCTA uses race-neutral means of achieving 

DBE participation.  If ECCTA uses contract goals, it will get approval from the FTA to set 

contract goals. 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 15 
 

Good Faith Efforts Procedures (§26.53) 

Demonstration of good faith efforts (§26.53a&c) 

Good faith efforts do not apply to ECCTA.  ECCTA uses race-neutral means of achieving 

DBE participation. 

 

Counting DBE Participation (§26.55) 

ECCTA will count DBE participation toward overall goals as provided in §26.55. 

  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 16 
 

SUBPART D - CERTIFICATION STANDARDS 
 
Certification Process (§26.61 - 26.73) 

ECCTA is a participant of the CUCP that uses the certification standards of Subpart D of 

Part 26 to determine the eligibility of firms to participate as DBEs in DOT-assisted contracts. 

The CUCP Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) provides DOT recipients the option to be 

either a certifying member or a non-certifying member.  ECCTA is a non-certifying 

member.  

 

ECCTA uses DBE vendors certified by the CUCP.  The online certification process is at the 

following website address:  https://caltrans.dbesystem.com/  

 

For information about the certification process or to apply for certification, firms should use 

the Internet to locate the nearest certifying agency.  The website address to obtain DBE 

certification information and  the most recent roster of certifying agencies can be found online 

at:  https://californiaucp.dbesystem.com/  

  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 17 
 

SUBPART E - CERTIFICATION PROCEDURES 
 
Unified Certification Programs (§26.81-§26.83) 

ECCTA is a non-certifying member of the CUCP.  As such, ECCTA does not provide 

certification procedures itself.  Interested parties are encouraged to use the Internet to obtain 

contact information on the most recent roster of certifying agencies at the following website 

address: https://californiaucp.dbesystem.com/ 

 

Procedures for Certification Decisions (§26.83)    

Re-certifications (§26.83a&c) 

ECCTA is a non-certifying member of the CUCP and currently does not re-certify or make 

certification decisions. 

 

Information, Confidentiality, Cooperation (§26.109) 

ECCTA will safeguard from disclosure to third parties information that may reasonably be 

regarded as confidential business information, consistent with Federal, state, and local law.  

ECCTA will follow the procedures in §26.109 regarding availability of records, 

confidentiality of information on complainants, cooperation, intimidation and retaliation. 

  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 18 
 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

Attachment 1 Definitions 

 

Attachment 2 Organizational Chart  

 

Attachment 3 Record of DBE Compliance Monitoring  

 

Attachment 4 Record of Commercially Useful Function Report  

 

Attachment 5 Overall Goal Calculation 

 

Attachment 6 Regulations: 49 CFR Part 26 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 19 
 

Attachment 1- Definitions 

 

 (§ 26.5) What do the terms used in 49 CFR Part 26 mean? 

Affiliation has the same meaning the term has in the Small Business Administration (SBA) 

regulations, 13 CFR part 121. 

(1) Except as otherwise provided in 13 CFR part 121, concerns are affiliates of each other 

when, either directly or indirectly: 

(i) One concern controls or has the power to control the other; or 

(ii) A third party or parties controls or has the power to control both; or 

(iii) An identity of interest between or among parties exists such that affiliation may be found. 

(2) In determining whether affiliation exists, it is necessary to consider all appropriate factors, 

including common ownership, common management, and contractual relationships. Affiliates 

must be considered together in determining whether a concern meets small business size 

criteria and the statutory cap on the participation of firms in the DBE program. 

Alaska Native means a citizen of the United States who is a person of one-fourth degree or 

more Alaskan Indian (including Tsimshian Indians not enrolled in the Metlaktla Indian 

Community), Eskimo, or Aleut blood, or a combination of those bloodlines. The term includes, 

in the absence of proof of a minimum blood quantum, any citizen whom a Native village or 

Native group regards as an Alaska Native if their father or mother is regarded as an Alaska 

Native. 

Alaska Native Corporation (ANC) means any Regional Corporation, Village Corporation, 

Urban Corporation, or Group Corporation organized under the laws of the State of Alaska in 

accordance with the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, as amended (43 U.S.C. 1601, et 

seq.). 

Assets mean all the property of a person available for paying debts or for distribution, 

including one's respective share of jointly held assets. This includes, but is not limited to, cash 

on hand and in banks, savings accounts, IRA or other retirement accounts, accounts receivable, 

life insurance, stocks and bonds, real estate, and personal property. 

Business, business concern or business enterprise means an entity organized for profit with a 

place of business located in the United States, and which operates primarily within the United 

States or which makes a significant contribution to the United States economy through 

payment of taxes or use of American products, materials, or labor. 

Compliance means that a recipient has correctly implemented the requirements of this part. 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 20 
 

Contingent Liability means a liability that depends on the occurrence of a future and uncertain 

event. This includes, but is not limited to, guaranty for debts owed by the applicant concern, 

legal claims and judgments, and provisions for federal income tax. 

Contract means a legally binding relationship obligating a seller to furnish supplies or services 

(including, but not limited to, construction and professional services) and the buyer to pay for 

them. For purposes of this part, a lease is considered to be a contract. 

Contractor means one who participates, through a contract or subcontract (at any tier), in a 

DOT-assisted highway, transit, or airport program. 

Days mean calendar days. In computing any period of time described in this part, the day from 

which the period begins to run is not counted, and when the last day of the period is a Saturday, 

Sunday, or Federal holiday, the period extends to the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, 

or Federal holiday. Similarly, in circumstances where the recipient's offices are closed for all or 

part of the last day, the period extends to the next day on which the agency is open. 

Department or DOT means the U.S. Department of Transportation, including the Office of the 

Secretary, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), the Federal Transit Administration 

(FTA), and the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). 

Disadvantaged business enterprise or DBE means a for-profit small business concern— 

(1) That is at least 51 percent owned by one or more individuals who are both socially and 

economically disadvantaged or, in the case of a corporation, in which 51 percent of the stock is 

owned by one or more such individuals; and 

(2) Whose management and daily business operations are controlled by one or more of the 

socially and economically disadvantaged individuals who own it. 

DOT-assisted contract means any contract between a recipient and a contractor (at any tier) 

funded in whole or in part with DOT financial assistance, including letters of credit or loan 

guarantees, except a contract solely for the purchase of land. 

Good faith efforts means efforts to achieve a DBE goal or other requirement of this part which, 

by their scope, intensity, and appropriateness to the objective, can reasonably be expected to 

fulfill the program requirement. 

Home state means the state in which a DBE firm or applicant for DBE certification maintains 

its principal place of business. 

Immediate family member means father, mother, husband, wife, son, daughter, brother, sister, 

grandfather, grandmother, father-in-law, mother-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, and 

domestic partner and civil unions recognized under State law. 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 21 
 

Indian tribe means any Indian tribe, band, nation, or other organized group or community of 

Indians, including any ANC, which is recognized as eligible for the special programs and 

services provided by the United States to Indians because of their status as Indians, or is 

recognized as such by the State in which the tribe, band, nation, group, or community resides. 

See definition of “tribally-owned concern” in this section. 

Joint venture means an association of a DBE firm and one or more other firms to carry out a 

single, for-profit business enterprise, for which the parties combine their property, capital, 

efforts, skills and knowledge, and in which the DBE is responsible for a distinct, clearly 

defined portion of the work of the contract and whose share in the capital contribution, control, 

management, risks, and profits of the joint venture are commensurate with its ownership 

interest. 

Liabilities mean financial or pecuniary obligations. This includes, but is not limited to, 

accounts payable, notes payable to bank or others, installment accounts, mortgages on real 

estate, and unpaid taxes. 

Native Hawaiian means any individual whose ancestors were natives, prior to 1778, of the 

area which now comprises the State of Hawaii. 

Native Hawaiian Organization means any community service organization serving Native 

Hawaiians in the State of Hawaii which is a not-for-profit organization chartered by the State 

of Hawaii, is controlled by Native Hawaiians, and whose business activities will principally 

benefit such Native Hawaiians. 

Noncompliance means that a recipient has not correctly implemented the requirements of this 

part. 

Operating Administration or OA means any of the following parts of DOT: the Federal 

Aviation Administration (FAA), Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), and Federal 

Transit Administration (FTA). The “Administrator” of an operating administration includes his 

or her designees. 

Personal net worth means the net value of the assets of an individual remaining after total 

liabilities are deducted. An individual's personal net worth does not include: The individual's 

ownership interest in an applicant or participating DBE firm; or the individual's equity in his or 

her primary place of residence. An individual's personal net worth includes only his or her own 

share of assets held jointly or as community property with the individual's spouse. 

Primary industry classification means the most current North American Industry 

Classification System (NAICS) designation which best describes the primary business of a 

firm. The NAICS is described in the North American Industry Classification Manual—United 

States, which is available on the Internet at the U.S. Census Bureau Web site: 

http://www.census.gov/eos/www/naics/. 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 22 
 

Primary recipient means a recipient which receives DOT financial assistance and passes some 

or all of it on to another recipient. 

Principal place of business means the business location where the individuals who manage the 

firm's day-to-day operations spend most working hours. If the offices from which management 

is directed and where the business records are kept are in different locations, the recipient will 

determine the principal place of business. 

Program means any undertaking on a recipient's part to use DOT financial assistance, 

authorized by the laws to which this part applies. 

Race-conscious measure or program is one that is focused specifically on assisting only DBEs, 

including women-owned DBEs. 

Race-neutral measure or program is one that is, or can be, used to assist all small businesses. 

For the purposes of this part, race-neutral includes gender-neutrality. 

Recipient is any entity, public or private, to which DOT financial assistance is extended, 

whether directly or through another recipient, through the programs of the FAA, FHWA, or 

FTA, or who has applied for such assistance. 

Secretary means the Secretary of Transportation or his/her designee. 

Set-aside means a contracting practice restricting eligibility for the competitive award of a 

contract solely to DBE firms. 

Small Business Administration or SBA means the United States Small Business 

Administration. 

SBA certified firm refers to firms that have a current, valid certification from or recognized by 

the SBA under the 8(a) BD or SDB programs.  

Small business concern means, with respect to firms seeking to participate as DBEs in DOT-

assisted contracts, a small business concern as defined pursuant to section 3 of the Small 

Business Act and Small Business Administration regulations implementing it (13 CFR part 

121) that also does not exceed the cap on average annual gross receipts specified in §26.65(b). 

Socially and economically disadvantaged individual means any individual who is a citizen (or 

lawfully admitted permanent resident) of the United States and who has been subjected to 

racial or ethnic prejudice or cultural bias within American society because of his or her identity 

as a members of groups and without regard to his or her individual qualities. The social 

disadvantage must stem from circumstances beyond the individual's control. 

(1) Any individual who a recipient finds to be a socially and economically disadvantaged 

individual on a case-by-case basis. An individual must demonstrate that he or she has held 

himself or herself out, as a member of a designated group if you require it. 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 23 
 

(2) Any individual in the following groups, members of which are rebuttably presumed to be 

socially and economically disadvantaged: 

(i) “Black Americans,” which includes persons having origins in any of the Black racial groups 

of Africa; 

(ii) “Hispanic Americans,” which includes persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, 

Dominican, Central or South American, or other Spanish or Portuguese culture or origin, 

regardless of race; 

(iii) “Native Americans,” which includes persons who are enrolled members of a federally or 

State recognized Indian tribe, Alaska Natives, or Native Hawaiians; 

(iv) “Asian-Pacific Americans,” which includes persons whose origins are from Japan, China, 

Taiwan, Korea, Burma (Myanmar), Vietnam, Laos, Cambodia (Kampuchea), Thailand, 

Malaysia, Indonesia, the Philippines, Brunei, Samoa, Guam, the U.S. Trust Territories of the 

Pacific Islands (Republic of Palau), Republic of the Northern Marianas Islands, Samoa, Macao, 

Fiji, Tonga, Kirbati, Tuvalu, Nauru, Federated States of Micronesia, or Hong Kong; 

(v) “Subcontinent Asian Americans,” which includes persons whose origins are from India, 

Pakistan, Bangladesh, Bhutan, the Maldives Islands, Nepal or Sri Lanka; 

(vi) Women; 

(vii) Any additional groups whose members are designated as socially and economically 

disadvantaged by the SBA, at such time as the SBA designation becomes effective. 

(3) Being born in a particular country does not, standing alone, mean that a person is 

necessarily a member of one of the groups listed in this definition. 

Spouse means a married person, including a person in a domestic partnership or a civil union 

recognized under State law. 

Transit vehicle manufacturer means any manufacturer whose primary business purpose is to 

manufacture vehicles specifically built for public mass transportation. Such vehicles include, 

but are not limited to: Buses, rail cars, trolleys, ferries, and vehicles manufactured specifically 

for paratransit purposes. Producers of vehicles that receive post-production alterations or 

retrofitting to be used for public transportation purposes (e.g., so-called cutaway vehicles, vans 

customized for service to people with disabilities) are also considered transit vehicle 

manufacturers. Businesses that manufacture, mass-produce, or distribute vehicles solely for 

personal use and for sale “off the lot” are not considered transit vehicle manufacturers. 

Tribally-owned concern means any concern at least 51 percent owned by an Indian tribe as 

defined in this section. 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 24 
 

You refers to a recipient, unless a statement in the text of this part or the context requires 

otherwise (i.e., ‘You must do XYZ’ means that recipients must do XYZ). 

[64 FR 5126, Feb. 2, 1999, as amended at 64 FR 34570, June 28, 1999; 68 FR 35553, June 16, 

2003; 76 FR 5096, Jan. 28, 2011; 79 FR 59592, Oct. 2, 2014] 

  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 25 
 

 
Attachment 2- Organizational Chart 

 

 

Attachment 3 

 

Monthly Subcontracting Performance Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 26 
 

 

Attachment 3- Record of DBE Compliance Monitoring 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 27 
 

 

 
 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 28 
 

 

Attachment 4- Record of Commercially Useful Function Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 29 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 30 
 

 
 

 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 31 
 

 

 
 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 32 
 

Attachment 5- Overall Goal Calculation (§26.45) 

 

Amount of Goal 

Pursuant to §26.45, ECCTA will establish an annual overall goal for DBE participation 

in DOT-assisted contracts. 

 

Methodology used to Calculate Overall Goal 

The following is a summary of the method ECCTA uses to calculate a goal: 

 

Determining a Base Figure 

ECCTA will determine a base figure for the relative availability of DBEs on any 

project by using one of the following methods: 

1.  DBE Directories and Census Bureau Data.  Determine the number of ready, 

willing, and able DBEs in ECCTA’s market from the CUCP directory.  Using the 

Census Bureau’s County Business Pattern data base, determine the number of all 

ready, willing, and able businesses in ECCTA’s market that perform work in the 

same NAICS codes.  Divide the number of DBEs by the number of all businesses to 

derive a base figure for the relative availability of DBEs in ECCTA’s market. 

2. Use of a goal of another DOT recipient.  If another DOT recipient in the same or 

substantially similar market has set an overall goal in compliance with this rule, 

ECCTA may use that goal as a base figure for its goal. 

 

Adjusting a Base Figure 

As required in the rule, ECCTA will adjust the base figure so that it reflects as 

accurately as possible the DBE participation that can be expected in the absence of 

discrimination.  Possible information used to adjust the based figure: 

 

1. Demonstrated evidence of DBE capacity to perform work on ECCTA’s project; 

2. Disparity studies conducted within the jurisdiction; 

3. Input from interested parties; 

4. Adjustments if using the goal of another DOT recipient; 

5. Past participation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 33 
 

Attachment 6- Regulations: 49 CFR Part 26 

 

  

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 34 
 

 

 
 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 35 
 

 
 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 36 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 37 
 

 

 
 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 38 
 

 
 

  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 39 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 40 
 

 
 

  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 41 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 42 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 43 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 44 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 45 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 46 
 

 
 

 



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 47 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 48 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 49 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 50 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 51 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 52 
 

 
 

  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 53 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 54 
 

 
 

  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 55 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 56 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 57 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 58 
 

 

  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 59 
 

 
 

  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 60 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 61 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 62 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 63 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 64 
 

 
 

  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 65 
 

 
 

  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 66 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 67 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 68 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 69 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 70 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 71 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 72 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 73 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 74 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 75 
 

 
  



ECCTA DBE Program 
March 2024 Page 76 
 

 
 



 

TAB 4 
Agenda Item #7b 

ACTION ITEM: Authorization for Filing for TDA and STA Funding 

 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday March 27, 2024 

ECCTA Boardroom 
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509 

  







 
RESOLUTION #240327B 

AUTHORIZATION OF FILING FOR TDA and STA FUNDING 
 

Resolution #240327B authorizes the Chief Executive Officer or their designee to file an application 
with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for the allocation of Transportation 

Development Act and State Transit Assistance funding. 
 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Development Act (TDA), (Public Utilities Code §99200 et seq.), 
provides for the disbursement of funds from the Local Transportation Fund (LTF) of the County of 
Contra Costa for use by eligible applicants for the purpose of administering and operating public transit 
services in Eastern Contra Costa County; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the TDA, and pursuant to the applicable rules and regulations 
thereunder (21 Cal. Code of Regs. §6600 et seq.) a prospective applicant wishing to receive an allocation 
from the Local Transportation Fund (LTF) shall file its claim with the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission; and  
 

WHEREAS, the State Transit Assistance (STA) fund is created pursuant to Public Utilities Code §99310 
et seq., and 
 

WHEREAS, the STA fund makes funds available pursuant to Public Utilities Code §99313.6 for 
allocation to eligible applicants to support approved transit projects; and 
 

WHEREAS, TDA funds from the Local Transportation Fund of Contra Costa County and STA funds 
will be required by applicant in Fiscal Year 2023-2024 for administering and operating Fixed-Route and 
paratransit services for the public of Eastern Contra Costa County; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority is an eligible applicant for TDA and/or STA 
funds pursuant to PUC §99260;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute 
and file appropriate TDA / STA applications together with all necessary supporting documents with the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be transmitted to the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission in conjunction with the filing of such claims; and the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission be requested to grant the allocation of funds specified in the applications and supporting 
documents. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27th day of March 2024, by the following votes: 
 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
 

_____________________________    ________________________________ 

Lamar Hernandez-Thorpe, Chair                            Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 

 
AYES:   _____ 
NOES:    _____ 

ABSENT:  _____ 
ABSTENTIONS: _____ 



 

TAB 5 
Agenda Item #7c 

ACTION ITEM: Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) 

  
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday March 27, 2024 

ECCTA Boardroom 
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509 

  







 

RESOLUTION #240327C 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION OF THE 
CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES AND AUTHORIZED AGENT FORMS 

FOR THE LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM (LCTOP) 
FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT(S): 

Hydrogen Fueling Station ($928,558) 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority is an eligible project sponsor and may 
receive state funding from the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for transit 
projects; and 
 

WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or regional 
implementing agency to abide by various regulations; and 
 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 862 (2014) named the Department of Transportation (Department) as 
the administrative agency for the LCTOP; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Department has developed guidelines for the purpose of administering and 
distributing LCTOP funds to eligible project sponsors (local agencies); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority wishes to delegate authorization to 
execute these documents and any amendments thereto to Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive 
Officer; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority wishes to implement the following 
LCTOP projects listed below, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Eastern Contra 
Costa Transit Authority that the fund recipient agrees to comply with all conditions and 
requirements set forth in the Certification and Assurances and the Authorized Agent documents 
and applicable statutes, regulations and guidelines for all LCTOP funded transit projects. 
 



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive 
Officer, be authorized to execute all required documents of the LCTOP program and any 
Amendments thereto with the California Department of Transportation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Eastern Contra 
Costa Transit Authority that it hereby authorizes the submittal of the following project 
nominations and allocation requests to the Department in FY2023-2024 LCTOP funds:  
 
Project Name: Hydrogen Fueling Station 
Amount of LCTOP funds requested: $928,558 
Short description of project: LCTOP funding will provide the local matching funds for the 
construction of a hydrogen fueling station that will support up to 30 fuel cell electric buses. 
Benefit to Priority Populations: Reduction in GHG and particulate matter emissions. 
Contributing Sponsors: Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27th day of March 2024, by the following votes: 

 
EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

 
 
 ______________________________  _______________________________ 
 
Lamar Hernandez-Thorpe, Chair   Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 
 

AYES:  _______ 
NOES:  _______ 
ABSENT:  _______ 
ABSENTIONS: _______ 


	March 27_2024_Board_Agenda
	March 2024 TDED
	March 27_2024_Board_Agenda

	Tab 1
	5a - February 28 2024 ECCA BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

	5b - February 2024 YTD Actuals vs Budget for Board
	5c March 2024 DRAFT marketing report
	Tab 2
	6a Ops Report
	Overview

	Tab 3
	7a Memo DBE Program 2024
	7a Resolution 240327A 2024 DBE Program
	EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
	ABSTENTIONS: _____


	7a Attachment Eastern Contra Costa Transit AuthorityDBEProgram2024
	Tab 4
	7b Memo FY2023-2024 TDA STA Application
	7b Resolution FY2023-2024 TDA STA Application
	EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY

	Tab 5
	7c Memo ECCTA FY24 LCTOP Resolution
	7c Resolution ECCTA FY24 LCTOP



